SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
January 26, 2011
9:02 a.m

9:02: 20 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Commttee
nmeeting to order at 9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Director Karen Rehfeld, Ofice of WMnagenent and Budget;
John Boucher, Senior Econonist, Ofice of Mnagenent and
Budget; Senator Cathy G essel

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

None
SUMVARY
AFY12 Budget Overview & Fiscal Summary

9:06: 29 AM

DI RECTOR KAREN REHFELD, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDCET,
presented the PowerPoint "FY2012 Budget Overview. " She
noted the change in the staff of the Ofice of Minagenent
and Budget (QOwB), and displayed the layout of the staff in
slide 2.



Ms. Rehfeld stated that the governor released the FY12
budget on Decenber 15, 2010. She reported that the
governor's budget vision was to "position Alaska' s econony
for gromh and position Alaska's famlies for opportunity,”
as said in slide 3. She said the FY12 budget would be a
pl anning tool that was crafted to support the governor's
vision. Wthin the vision were the principles highlighted
in slide 4. The first principle was fiscal restraint, and
she remarked that Alaska was in a better financial
situation than many other states. She renarked Al aska had
mai nt ai ned budget discipline, and its reserves were well
established. If discipline were nmaintained, some savings
could be used to leverage investnents while still insuring
a healthy accessible reserve. She stated that spending
discipline in cash reserves were reflected in Al aska' s AAA
bond rating. The financial comrunity recognized that Al aska
had sound financial footing, and the positive bond rating
lowers the cost of debt. She remarked that strategic
investnments in Alaska's infrastructure would produce
econom c growh. She stated that investnent in affordable
energy would create opportunities for the future; and the
governor's budget proposed key investnents in resource and
econoni ¢ devel opnent. She reported that the |ast budget
principle was to maintain cash reserves. She noted that
Al aska had approximately $12 billion in savings, which did
not include the public education fund or permnent fund
earni ngs. She enphasi zed that Al aska had a bal anced budget,
substantial cash reserves, and an excellent bond rating.

Ms. Rehfeld discussed slide 5: "FY2012 Budget Priorities.”
She enphasi zed that the budget priorities were specifically
outlined in the Alaska constitution: resource and economc
devel opnment, education, and public safety. She highlighted
sone of the conponents of the budget that supported the
constitutional priorities. She began with the conponents
related to resource and economc developnent: energy,
access to resources, and natural gas devel opnent. One of
the budget proposals was $65.7 nmllion to advance the
pl anni ng, desi gn, and permtting for t he Susi t na
Hydroel ectric Project. The Susitna Hydroelectric Project
woul d supply energy to South-central and interior Al aska.
The project would use the estimated bal ance of the Rail belt
Energy Fund, and would create jobs to reach Al aska's energy
policy goal. She stated that the budget proposed to
allocate $25 mllion for renewable energy grants, $25
mllion towards the weatherization prograns, and $10
mllion for the Southeast Energy G ant Fund. She stressed

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 01/26/11 9:02 A M



that the governor placed inportance on using Alaska's
natural resources to stinulate Al aska's econony. The budget
included funding for roads to access the resources: $800
mllion to conplete environmental nanagenent of the Dalton
H ghway to Umat; and $2.5 million for western access in
the Anbler mning district.

9:12: 06 AM

Ms. Rehfeld continued to discuss natural gas devel opnent.
She stated that the governor's budget included $160 nillion
for Alaska Gasline Inducenment Act (AGA) reinbursenent,
which would bring the inbursement to $345 million of the
$500 mllion total inbursenent.

Co-Chair Stedman queried the balance of accruenent and pay
out of Ad A Ms. Rehfeld agreed to provide that
i nformati on.

Co- Chair Hof f man wondered how the adm nistration planned to

neet the five year schedule of funding the $250 mllion
t owar ds alternative ener gy. He remar ked t hat t he
| egislature had agreed to pay $50 mllion each year, but
the governor's budget only proposed a $25 million paynent.
Ms. Rehfeld responded that it was the intent of the
legislature to pay $50 mllion a year toward renewable

energy grants, and remarked that sonme additional paynents
were made during the first couple of years of the program
The Al aska Energy Authority (AEA) had used nore tine than
anticipated to handle the grant proposals, and praised AEA
for their efforts. The FY1l budget proposal allowed AEA
time to sort the grant proposals. The governor stated that
the $25 nmillion in the budget was intended as a starting
poi nt for budget discussions.

Co- Chair Hoffman wondered if the |egislature could consider
an additional $25 mllion when discussing the reinbursenent
paynents. M. Rehfeld replied that the governor would be
open to further discussion and ideas regardi ng AEA

Co-Chair Hoffman stressed that the renewable energy grant
program was enbarking on its fourth year. The governor's
proposed rate of $25 nmillion would not neet the $250
mllion goal over five years. M. Rehfeld understood the
concern regarding the reinbursenent of the energy grants,
and reiterated that the intent of the program was to fund
projects that would reduce the cost of energy.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 01/26/11 9:02 A M



9:16:45 AM

Ms. Rehfeld discussed natural gas devel opnment efforts. She
stated that the governor's budget included approximtely
$6.9 mllion for ongoing coordination of AQ A, and $5.5
mllion for the Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation.

Co-Chair Stedman queried the position vacancy of the AGA
coordinator. Ms. Rehfeld replied that there was currently
recruitnment for that position, and she agreed to provide
further informtion.

Senator McQ@uire wondered if the $5.5 million allocation for
the Al aska Gasline Devel oprment Corporation was considered
to be the total amount needed for the project conpletion.
Ms. Rehfeld disclosed that the current fiscal note of
approximately $16 mllion would cover the incurring costs
in the current year for contracts and activities related
various departnments. She remarked that the intent of the
budget request was to maintain report recommendations, but
it was difficult to determ ne exactly what the FY12 budget
needed. She pointed out that the design of the request was
nmerely a starting point.

9:19:27 AM

Ms Rehfeld highlighted the education portion of the budget
priorities. She stated that the governor's budget included
$8.2 nmillion to fund the Al aska Performance Schol arship
awards for eligible high school seniors who graduate in
2011. The scholarships could be wused for post-secondary
training and/or college. The budget also included the
Al aska Advantage needs based conponent through the Al aska
Comm ssi on on Post-secondary Education. The budget includes
full funding for the K-12 foundation and people
transportation progranms for Alaska's 53 school districts,
serving approximtely 130,000 students statew de. She added
that the budget included forward funding for K-12 education
in FY13.

Ms. Rehfeld reported the public safety priorities. She
stated that the governor's budget proposed year two of
initiative to end donestic violence and sexual assault in
Al aska. The initiative f ocused on preventi on,
i nvestigation, research, services to victins, and child
safety. The budget included $3.4 mllion to fund 15 new

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 01/26/11 9:02 A M



Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSGCs), and three new state
troopers. Through the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation
(AHFC) proposed $1 million to help fund housing for VPSGCs.
She stated that since the three years prior, VPSGCs had
growmn from 47 funded positions to 86 at the end of the
current fiscal year. She enphasized that the state would
have 101 VPSGCs by the end of FY 12 upon approval of the
current budget request. She asserted that the goal was to
have a trooper, a police officer, or a VPSO in every
community in Alaska that desires |aw enforcenent presence.
She stated that the governor intended to continue the $3
mllion budget for <crime prevention efforts, and an
additional $3.2 mllion to conbat sexual assault and
donmestic through investigation, reporting, research, and
services to victinms. She reported that two positions were
requested in the agency of Public Safety for the technica
crimes unit to investigate internet crinmes agai nst
chi | dren.

9:22:19 AM

Ms. Rehfeld discussed slide 6: "FY2012 Expenditures by
Category." She stated that the total proposed budget was a
little over $11 billion. She pointed to the left side of
the pie chart, which was highlighted in shades of a gold
color. She explained that just over half of the total
budget repr esent ed was general ly consi dered non-
di scretionary: fornula progranms, Permanent Fund (PF), and
statewi de costs. She pointed to the right hand side of the
pie chart, which was represented as blue and red slices

She stated that those were considered discretionary funds:
agency operations and capital spending. She divided the
unrestricted general fund (UG) and agency nonformula
budget. She explained that the UG held about $1.86
billion. She stated that the committee should focus on the
agency nonformula funds, when looking for reductions in
state spending. She revealed that when the governor was
exam ning the adm nistration's budget, he linmted the state
agency growh to 1.9 percent in UG. The budget included
collective bargaining unit agreenments that would be in
FY12, which included six bargaining units, non-covered
enpl oyees, and the University of Alaska. She stated that
the increase would be just wunder $77 mllion, which
included $40 million in UG

9:24:52 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 01/26/11 9:02 A M



Ms Rehfeld discussed slide 7: "FY2012 Operation Budget-
Forrmul a.” She explained that fornmula prograns represented
$2.98 billion, which was 26 percent of the $11 billion
budget. She stated that under the education program was the
$8.2 mllion performance scholarship, $1.13 billion K-12
FY12, and the transfer of $1.14 billion into the K-12 FY14
fund. The FY12 budget for K-12 was based on the current
statutory forrmula, and the current base student all ocation:
$5, 680.

9:29:18 AM

Ms. Rehfeld highlighted the statew de appropriations (slide
8" and remarked that the statew de appropriation was $1.3
billion, which accounted for 11 percent of the total
budget. She stated that there was $479 mllion in the
budget for retirement unfunded liability, whhich was $123
mllion nore than the year prior. The unfunded liability
was currently $9.7 billion: The Public Enployee Retiremnent
System (PERS) was approximately $6.3 billion and the
Teachers Retirement System (TRS) was approxinmately $3.4
billion.

Co-Chair Stedman remarked a tinme delay in the nunbers for
PERS and TRS, so the data needed to be brought up to date.
Ms. Rehfeld agreed, and stated that the unfunded liability
was based on the actuarial work. She reported that OVB
hoped for continual market growth that would help cover
| osses from FYO8 and FY09. She stressed that the costs
could be nanaged reasonably over tinme if there were
di scussi ons about ot her managenent approaches.

9: 32: 33 AM

Senat or Thomas queried the disposition of the $400 million
after the lawsuit of the actuaries. M. Rehfeld replied
that the $400 mllion was allocated between PERS and TRS
She remarked that the Departnment of Administration could
give nore details regarding how the funds were distributed.

Co- Chair Stedman wondered if the $400 million went directly
into the trust. M. Rehfeld offered to provide that
i nformation.

Ms. Rehfeld continued to discuss slide 8, and stated that

the governor's budget had $400 million in oil tax credits.
She remarked that there were two pieces of the $850 nmillion

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 01/26/11 9:02 A M



in oil tax credits. She stated that $450 nillion was
al ready accounted in the revenue forecast, so the specific
portion nentioned in the budget was the estimted anount
designated for the eligible credits for the oil conpanies.
She remarked that the tax «credits were designed to
encourage nore oil production and exploration in Alaska. In
the FY1l budget, the tax credits estimate was $180 mlli on.
She stated that in the last Cctober, DOR provided a new
estimate of an additional $250 mllion. The total
eligibility for tax credits in FY1l was $430 mllion. The
budget was based on conpani es' spending estinmates, and who
would be eligible in the next fiscal year. She stated that
| anguage was added to the <current budget to clarify
anounts, timng, and paynent deadli nes.

Co-Chair Stedman stated that DOR would be [ooking at the
historic credits fromthe last four years, and there would
be an in depth discussion about what expenditures could
generate credits.

Ms. Rehfeld discussed debt service, which was currently
$290 nmillion. She explained that debt service was for
school debt reinbursenment, GO bonds, |ease purchases, and
any authorized state debt. She discussed the repleni shnent
of the Comunity Revenue Sharing (CRS), and stated that $60
mllion would be allocated to 162 incorporated conmunities
and 149 uni ncor porated conmunities throughout Al aska.

9:37:22 AM

Ms. Rehfeld discussed slide 9: "FY2012 Capital Budget." She
stated that the capital budget was $1.6 billion, or roughly
14 percent of the total budget. She noted that OVB had
i ncluded $103 million to leverage funds for transportation,
hi ghway, aviation, and water/sewer projects. She pointed
out that there were three port projects in the budget: The
Por t of Anchor age, the Port MacKenzi e, and dock
i nprovenents i n Skagway.

Co-Chair Stedman remarked that there would be further
di scussion regarding the port developnent. M. Rehfeld
furthered that there was interest in many ports around
Al aska's coastline, especially along the Arctic coastline.

Co-Chair Hoffman wondered if there was interest in the need

for a port for the Donlin Creek resource. M. Rehfeld
replied that she was unsure, but agreed to provide that

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 01/26/11 9:02 A M



information. Co-Chair Stednman restated that the commttee
woul d address that issue in the later port devel opnent
di scussi ons.

9:40: 13 AM

Ms Rehfeld continued to address slide 9. She discussed the
Susitna hydro planning and the Renewable Energy and
Weat heri zation funds. She stated that the governor
requested year two of the deferred maintenance prograns.
She explained that the Department of Education and Early
Chi | dhood Devel opnent would be allotted $28.4 mllion for
the Quinhagak K-12 renovation and addition project, and
$19.9 mllion for 14 school nmajor nmintenance projects.

Co- Chai r Hof fman conplinented the admnistration for
funding a rural school, and wondered if the governor had
considered Kasayulie <case in the budget. M. Rehfeld
responded that the governor was interested in resolving the
Kasayulie case, and believed he would be open to further
di scussi on.

Senator O son wondered if Quinhagak was the only rural
school that the governor planned to fund. M. Rehfeld
responded that it was the only rural school proposal.

Senator Thomas wondered if the funding for Susitna was for
three to four years. M. Rehfeld agreed to provide nore
information regarding the Susitna tinme-line. Co- Chai r
Stedman stated that further discussion would take place
regardi ng Susitna funding.

Senator O son queried the total cost of Susitna Project
JOHN BOUCHER, SENI OR ECONOM ST, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND
BUDCGET, replied that there was an Alaska Energy Study
publ i shed the previous Novenber. He stated that he recalled
the total cost would be between $4.5 and $4.8 billion.

Senator O son wondered what efforts were being done
regardi ng energy costs in rural Alaska. Ms. Rehfeld replied
that there were various approaches specifically related to
renewabl e energy, efficiency, and conservation efforts.

9:46: 18 AM

Ms. Rehfeld discussed the FY10 supplenental budget, and
pointed out that the legislature had approved the first

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 01/26/11 9:02 A M



round of deferred mai ntenance projects. She stated that the
agencies reported that collectively nearly half of their
projects would be under construction or out to bid by the
FY11l construction season.

Ms. Rehfeld stated that the governor proposed to use Al aska
Housing Capital Corporation (AHCC) for sone specific
projects: AG A reinbursenent; the in-state gas project; the
port projects; the energy, renewable, weatherization in
Sout heast projects; and the school maj or  mai nt enance
proj ect s.

Co-Chair Stedman rem nded the conmittee that the three
years prior, noney had been put away in savings to obtain
federal match to act as a safety net for the state. He
di scussed transferring the noney between accounts. M.
Rehfeld stated that through the budget clarification
proj ect, the general fund discussions highlight the
subfunds. The governor's budget proposed that the AHCC
di vi dends were under $17 nmillion.

9:51: 07 AM

Co- Chair Stedman wondered if the ongoing cash flow had an
inmpact on the budget. M. Rehfeld replied that the
governor's budget proposed to use sone of the cash flow
funds: approximately $295 million. She pointed to the
fiscal summaries, and remarked that iif the legislature
chose to continue with the sane proposed |evel of spending,
wi thout wusing the savings accounts, there would be a
deficit. She offered that if there were no reserve
accounts, the governor probably would not propose to spend
the additional noney. She stated that reserves should be
used to grow the econony. She remarked that the state nust
have spending discipline; yet, managenent of cash reserves
were a priority, and strategic investnents could be
necessary. She stressed that the governor's proposal was
avai l able for the legislature to consider.

Co- Chair Stednman enphasi zed that February 17, 2011 was the
deadline for amendnents to the governor's proposed FY12
budget, and wondered if the commttee should be prepared
for substantial amendnents. M. Rehfeld replied that OVB
was currently working on the supplenental budget, and were
| ooking for areas in the current year's budget where there
were unforeseen circunstances in the prior year's budget.
She remarked that OVB could bring anendnents to the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 01/26/11 9:02 A M



conmmittee, if the issues were not addressed in the current
budget. She anticipated sone anendnents, but did not
characterize the nunber of anendments to be substanti al.

Co-Chair Stedman remarked that the state could see a
possible $25 mllion Medicaid adjustnment. M. Rehfeld
replied that if there was no extension of the high
rei nbursenent rate, there would be a G- replacenent of
approximately $123 mllion.

9:54: 36 AM

Co- Chair Hoffman wondered if the supplenental budget would
be funded wth savings accounts. M. Rehfeld replied that
she did not anticipate the use of the savings accounts for
t he suppl enental budget.

Co- Chair Stednan expressed concern in the ongoing cash flow
of the FY12 budget. He remarked that if there were
addi tional expenditures, it would be deficit spending. M.
Rehfeld replied that there was a concern regarding oi
production decline, and the strategies for encouraging oil
revenue through production efforts. She remarked that
reserves would be relied on in the future to enhance
infrastructure investnents. She specifically remarked on
the significant effort to contain the cost of Medicaid.

Co-Chair Stedman asserted that the intent of establishing
reserves was to maintain a strong position as a state, and
he felt that the state was in a weaker position with the
executive branch's efforts to access the reserves. M.
Rehfeld replied that the governor was open to discussions
about determning the appropriate |evel of spending. She
reiterated that the governor's intention was to achieve a
bal ance, and determ ne what itens could wait until the next
fundi ng cycl e.

10: 00: 40 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman conmented that the $645 nillion general
fund capital budget was a good starting point for
di scussi ons.

Ms. Rehfeld addressed slide 10: "State Budget-Another
Perspective." She discussed the conponents of the budget
di splayed in the pie chart. She explained that nearly 60
per cent of Al aska's budget benefited conmuni ties,

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 01/26/11 9:02 A M



or gani zati ons, and individuals through grants, di rect
paynents and capital project funding: Medicaid, permanent
fund dividends, revenue sharing, school funding, retirenent
unfunded liability, capital projects, and named recipient
grants. She stated that 21 percent of the budget
represented the portions of the budget related to
travel /contractual /conmodities in the operating budget:
travel, hotels, professional services, fuel, and equipnent.
She pointed out that many of the purchased services
investnments directly stinulate Alaska's private sector
econony. She stated that 20 percent of the budget
represented salaries for state enpl oyees. She renarked that
seven of the eighteen agencies represent two-thirds of the
per sonal services costs and positions: Uni versity,
Depart ment of Transportation and Public Facilities,
Departnment of Health and Social Services, Departnent of
Corrections, Departnment of Fish and Ganme, Departnent of
Adm ni stration, and Departnent of Public Safety.

10: 04: 07 AM

Ms. Rehfeld reiterated that the proposed budget was nerely
a starting point, and offered information listed on OWB' s
websi t e.

Ms. Rehfeld displayed scenarios from "Executive Sunmary
FY2012 Ten-year Plan" (copy on file).

10: 05: 05 AM
AT EASE

10: 05: 44 AM
RECONVENED

Ms. Rehfeld explained that five scenarios were discussed in
the Executive Summary. She reiterated that principles
should be followed when naking decisions about the budget:
spending restraint and |looking at strategic investnents
when managi ng the cash reserves.

M. Boucher discussed page 13: "Scenario 2: Governor's
Budget with 3 percent Annual Expenditure G owh."

Co- Chair Stedman wondered where the 3 percent was applied

within the scenario. M. Boucher replied that the 3 percent
woul d af fect the UGF

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 01/26/11 9:02 A M



M. Boucher pointed out the FY13 columm. He stated that the
nunbers were produced with the governor's budget and the
fall forecast. He stated that the total reserves would grow
t hroughout the peri od.

10: 09: 47 AM

M. Boucher stated that the details on general fund
expenditures assuned a certain gromh rate, so there would
be no item zation of the unfunded liability.

Co-Chair Stedman asked for further explanation regarding
mul ti pl e conponents in the unfunded liability. M. Boucher
explained that when a flat percentage is used, sone
conponents of the budget would presunme other portions of
the discretionary budget, so the conponents may be
negative. He stated that the unfunded liability growth from
FY12 to FY17 was approximately $350 mllion, which would
put the total at about $825 nillion. He stated the
expenditures would go from $5.4 billion in FY12 to $6.3
billion in FY17.

Co-Chair Hoffrman queried the growth rate on a percentage
basis, and wondered how capital budget expenditures were
determined. M. Boucher responded that the spreadsheet
included all GF expenditures, so it was assuned that GF
expenditures would grow. He stated that there had been a
steady six percent growh rate for several years.

Co-Chair Stedman requested further information, and wanted
to know exactly what was included in the scenario
cal cul ati ons.

10: 15: 46 AM

Co-Chair Hoffrman noticed expenditures of $5.4 billion in
the FY12 budget, and wondered if that included $645 mllion
in capital. M. Boucher replied that the $645 nmillion was
for the UGF in FY12.

Senator McCQuire asked about the 3 percent decline rate. She
requested scenarios that included 3 percent, 5 percent, 7
percent, and 9 percent decline rates. Co-Chair Stedman
believed that Legislative Budget and Audit would provide
information regarding production and price. M. Boucher
added that the 3 percent was solely applied to oil revenue
and production in "Scenario 2." He stated that the 3

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 01/26/11 9:02 A M



percent would be applied to G- expenditures, but remarked
that the 10-year plan exam ned alternate prices. He stated
that alternate prices were the focus, rather than alternate
production. He stated that OB was offering alternate
scenarios to add perspective in budget discussions.

10:19: 41 AM

Senator Thomas wondered if the $77.96 listed in the FY11
colum was the predicted price or the actual price. M.
Boucher replied that the prices were based on the published
nunbers from the "Fall 2010 Revenue Forecast.” Co-Chair
Stedman remarked Legislative Budget and Audit would track
the price change over the year.

Co-Chair Hoffman queried the rates of return in the reserve
sub- accounts. M . Boucher replied that the earnings
assunptions were 3.84 percent for the short-term and the
6. 96 percent for the long-term

10: 24: 04 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman pointed out the $29 billion reserves
projection for FY21. M. Boucher responded that was the
projected based on the displayed assunptions, and
unf oreseen factors could affect the assunptions.

Co-Chair Stedman requested that the capital portions be
removed and the operating budget display nore detail. He
al so expressed that he would like to see nore in depth
conpari sons between FY10, FYl1l, and FY12.

#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:28 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 01/26/11 9:02 A M



